

Southland College Prep Charter High School Matteson School District 162 2022-2023 COVID-19 Mitigation Plan

December 19, 2022

Working In Partnership

Dedicated to Keeping Our Children Safe

Providing Quality Education using all available platforms and cutting edge technology

In the face of a Pandemic we remain **United** even while being socially distanced.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	4
TESTING	4
OVERALL ASSUMPTIONS	4
SECTION 1 – LOGISTICS	
STUDENT ARRIVAL AND DISMISSAL PROCEDURES	4
BUS MONITOR RESPONSIBILITIES	
STUDENT WALKERS / PARENT DROP OFF PROCEDURES	6
ARRIVAL OF STAFF	6
SCHOOL FRONT OFFICE PROCEDURES	6
VISITORS	6
STUDENT LATE ARRIVAL /EARLY DISMISSAL PROCEDURES	6
STAFF ATTENDANCE PROCEDURES	7
CADRE SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS	7
STUDENT ATTENDANCE PROCEDURES	7
ATTENDANCE TRACKING	8
CONTACT TRACING	8
SIGNAGE	8
RESTROOM BREAKS	8
HALLWAY TRAVEL	8
WATER FOUNTAINS	8
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS – CLEANING AND SANITATION	9
CLASSROOM SET UP/FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT/SHARED OBJECTS	9
FOOD SERVICE	. 9
BREAKFAST (DISTRICT 162)	. 9
BREAKFAST (SOUTHLAND)	. 9
LUNCH (DISTRICT #162)	10
LUNCH (SOUTHLAND)	10
PHYSICAL EDUCATION	11
AFTER-SCHOOL ACTIVITIES - ATHLETICS	11
SECTION 2 TECHNOLOGY	12
SECTION 2 – TECHNOLOGY	12
SECTION 3 – PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT/TRAINING	
MANDATORY STAFF TRAINING	12
SLIPPORT STAFF TRAINING	12

SOC	AL/EMOTIONAL HEALTH	12
HYG	IENE	12
STAI	F VACCINATION AND TESTING	13
MED	PICAL CONSIDERATIONS	13
CON	MUNICATION PLAN FOR CONFIRMED OR SUSPECTED COVID-19	14
<u>APP</u>	ENDICES:	
<u>APP</u> 1.	ENDICES: STUDENT COVID-19 EXPOSURE PROCEDURES	15

Introduction

The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic have brought about changes to almost everything we do in life. The return to in-person school instruction is no exception. The State of Illinois requires returning to in-person school instruction with guidelines for the safety of students and staff. District 162 and Southland College Prep, in partnership as a family, are committed to doing everything possible to prevent the spread of COVID-19 among students and staff while still providing a quality instructional program. Therefore, the enclosed guidelines and procedures were developed utilizing the most recent guidance from the Illinois State Board of Education, U.S. Centers for Disease Control, and the Illinois Department of Public Health. It is imperative that everyone adheres to these protocols at all times to ensure the safety of students and staff and provide the best learning experience for all. The district, in collaboration with stakeholders and the board of education, will modify and repost the plan every six months. Stakeholders will have the opportunity to provide input at board of education meetings.

Semi-Monthly COVID-19 Testing

Matteson District #162 and Southland College Prep Charter High School will require semimonthly rapid antigen testing for all students and staff in order to monitor and screen for COVID-19 transmission in our schools. Tests will be provided by the school to all parents and staff for use at home. Protocols for submitting test results will be communicated by each school. Anyone testing positive on a rapid antigen test must follow the protocols outlined in Appendices 1 and 2.

Overall Assumptions

In all procedures established by Southland and District 162, there are several assumptions that will be maintained at all times:

- All staff and students must maintain three to six feet social distance whenever possible and abstain from handshakes, hugging, high fives, fist and elbow bumps, etc.
- All staff and students may utilize appropriate face coverings and other appropriate
 personal protective equipment (PPE). Students and staff will be provided with a
 reusable face mask but can choose to wear their own as long as it meets IDPH
 guidelines.
- Frequent handwashing or hand sanitization should take place throughout the day.

Any student or staff member who exhibits symptoms of COVID-19, tests positive for COVID-19, or is exposed to someone with COVID-19 will follow the most recent IDPH guidance located at dph.illinois.gov/covid19.

SECTION 1 - LOGISTICS

Student Arrival and Dismissal Procedures

Bus Transportation is provided to any student requesting service who also lives more than .75 miles from school, must cross an IDOT designated hazardous route, has an IEP with transportation as a related service, or has been declared to be a student enrolled under the McKinney-Vento Act. Students will be assigned seats that they must sit in each day. Seats

should be assigned such that the first student to be picked up on a bus route in the morning should be seated furthest back and the last student picked up seated furthest forward on the bus. On the way home, students will be routed such that the first student scheduled to depart the bus is seated the most forward on the bus followed by the next student back, etc. This seating arrangement will minimize students walking next to each other as they enter and exit the bus. Students will be routed so as not to allow more than two students in any seat at a time.

Students and staff may wear face coverings while entering, exiting or sitting on the bus. Students arriving to the bus without a face covering will be given a disposable mask by the bus monitor or driver prior to entering the bus, if desired. All students will also be required to use hand sanitizer upon entering the bus. Sanitizer will be provided by the Bus Monitors or Drivers to the students as they enter the bus.

Pick-up and drop-off locations must be consistent each day and can only be changed by the parent contacting the Transportation Department. If approved, the Transportation Department will notify the school of the change.

Windows should be open to the extent possible on all bus rides to provide air flow on the bus at all times. The bus company will clean and sanitize buses in between each bus route.

Bus Monitor Responsibilities (District #162 only)

District #162 employed Bus Monitors will be on all District #162 buses each morning and on all afternoon routes at least through the first semester of the school year. Morning Bus Monitors are responsible for ensuring that all students desiring to wear face masks have one, using hand sanitizer and ensuring that all students remain in their assigned seat. Afternoon Bus Monitors will be responsible for ensuring that students remain in their assigned seat, and depart at their proper stop.

Morning Bus Monitors will be picked up at the school each morning and must have the following items with them prior to boarding the bus:

- Student route sheet including student names, addresses, bus stop and emergency contact information
- Route directions
- Student seating chart
- Disposable face coverings
- 1 bottle of hand sanitizer
- 2 pairs of gloves

No food, candy, gum, or drinks will be allowed to be consumed on the bus. Bus Monitors should be seated at the front of the bus and will take attendance of who is on the bus as students

board in the morning. Upon arrival at school in the morning, all monitors will keep students on the bus until dismissed by a building administrator. Once the administrator dismisses the students from the bus, the bus monitor will follow the arrival procedures for each particular building.

In the afternoon, Bus Monitors must take attendance prior to leaving the parking lot and record when each student gets off the bus. If there is any indecision about a student's stop or if the student indicates he/she is uncomfortable getting off at a location, the Bus Monitor must keep the child on the bus and contact their building administrator for further instructions.

All Bus Monitors must keep their cell phones on during the course of the route in case a building administrator and/or District Office Transportation personnel need to make contact with the monitor for any reason.

Student Walkers / Parent Drop Off Procedures

Each school's administration will communicate the procedures for student walkers and parent/drop-off.

Arrival of Staff

If a staff member is exhibiting any symptoms of COVID-19 or has had any exposure to COVID-19, he/she must contact his/her supervisor indicating the nature of the symptoms. All staff must arrive wearing a proper face covering.

SCHOOL FRONT OFFICE PROCEDURES

Visitors

Parents'/Visitors' access to buildings should be limited. A table will be placed in the vestibule of all buildings for parents to drop off items that students may have forgotten at home. Parents dropping off items must buzz the front office and will be allowed to enter the vestibule only where items will be placed. Staff will clean the item with a sanitizing cloth before passing it on to a student. Only parents with an absolute need to enter the building will be allowed into the front office. Hand sanitizer must be placed in the front office for visitor use and sneeze guards have been installed at the front office desks. Visitors to the front office must remain on the designated spot in the office that has been measured to be six feet from the front desk. All visitors must be logged by the office secretary with the person's name, time they arrived and departed, and reason for visiting. In addition, visitors to the school building must have their temperature taken at the designated temperature kiosk. Anyone with a temperature over 100.4 should be denied entry to the school. To the extent possible, staff will arrange scheduled meetings with parents, including IEP meetings, to be virtual via video and/or audio to minimize physical contact.

Student Late Arrival and Early Dismissal Procedures

Parents/guardians should call ahead whenever possible if a student is expected to arrive late. The student should be supervised by the parent as the child approaches the school front entrance until the student is admitted into the building and it is determined that the student is

cleared to proceed to the classroom. For early dismissals, the student will be called to leave the classroom at the appropriate time to avoid students congregating in the office waiting for a parent/guardian.

Parents/guardians are reminded that they should not allow students who are not on the school bus to arrive early to school. Parents/guardians should contact the building principal to learn when the building and school grounds will be open to receive students.

Parents picking up a child prior to dismissal will be asked to remain outside or in the vestibule until the child is brought to the vestibule. No parents or visitors should be allowed past the front office unless it is an extreme emergency and only with approval from the building Principal.

Staff Attendance Procedures

Staff who are unable to work must contact their immediate supervisor by telephone to inform them of the absence. In addition, District 162 staff must also log their absence in the AESOP system. STAFF MUST STATE TO THEIR IMMEDIATE SUPERVISORS IF THEY ARE EXHIBITING ANY SYMPTOMS ASSOCIATED WITH COVID-19 AS DEFINED BY IDPH (FEVER OF 100.4 OR GREATER, COUGH, SHORTNESS OF BREATH OR DIFFICULTY BREATHING, CHILLS, MUSCLE OR BODY ACHES, HEADACHE, SORE THROAT, NEW LOSS OF TASTE OR SMELL, FATIGUE, CONGESTION OR RUNNY NOSE, NAUSEA OR VOMITING, OR DIARRHEA) OR IF THEY ARE STAYING HOME DUE TO SUSPECTED OR CONFIRMED EXPOSURE TO OR DIAGNOSIS OF COVID-19. STAFF MUST THEN FOLLOW THE PROCEDURES IN APPENDIX 2.

Each day, every building shall keep a log of staff absences that are due to illness and shall note any staff or students who are absent due to COVID-19 related symptoms, exposure, or diagnosis. This information must be reported by 12:00 p.m. each day to the Superintendent/C.E.O.'s office.

Cadre Substitute Teachers

For the 2022-2023 school year, District #162 and Southland will both be hiring full-time cadre substitute teachers who will be permanently assigned to specific buildings to fill-in for absent teachers in that building. District #162 and Southland may also utilize teachers from the approved list of on-call substitutes.

Student Attendance Procedures

Parents and guardians of students who are not able to attend due to illness must call the student absence line at their child's school and state the name of the child, the name of the child's home room or first period teacher and the reason for the absence.

PARENTS/GUARDIANS MUST STATE IF THEIR CHILD IS EXHIBITING ANY SYMPTOMS ASSOCIATED WITH COVID-19 (ACCORDING TO IDPH SYMPTOMS INCLUDE FEVER OF 100.4 OR GREATER, COUGH, SHORTNESS OF BREATH OR DIFFICULTY BREATHING, CHILLS, MUSCLE OR BODY ACHES, HEADACHE, SORE THROAT, NEW LOSS OF TASTE OR SMELL, FATIGUE, CONGESTION OR RUNNY NOSE, NAUSEA OR VOMITING, OR DIARRHEA) OR IF THEIR CHILD IS

STAYING HOME DUE TO SUSPECTED OR CONFIRMED EXPOSURE TO OR DIAGNOSIS OF COVID-19. STUDENTS MUST THEN FOLLOW THE PROCEDURES LISTED IN APPENDIX 1.

Attendance Tracking

Each day, the nurse and school administrator will review the student and staff absences to determine any concerning patterns of possible COVID-19 symptoms. Front Office secretaries and administrators taking absence calls from parents or staff must inquire if the child or staff member has any symptoms consistent with COVID-19 and shall record that information. Any concerns will be reported to the Superintendent/C.E.O. immediately. Each day, every building shall keep a log of student absences that are due to illness and shall note any students who are absent due to COVID-19 related symptoms, exposure, or diagnosis. This information must be reported by 12:00 p.m. each day to the Superintendent/C.E.O.'s office.

Contact Tracing

Each teacher will be responsible for keeping a seating chart for each class. In addition, a log will be posted near the door of each room (See Appendix 3). Further, all bus monitors must maintain logs of which students ride a bus and the seat they were seated in each day. All of these documents will be maintained and reviewed by the nurse in each building for when contact tracing is necessary and will be discarded after two-weeks.

Signage

Signs and messages will be posted in highly visible locations to reinforce safety precautions and promote everyday protective measures. Signage will also be posted outside entryways noting the following:

- Persons may not enter the building if they have any currently known symptoms of COVID-19.
- Three to six feet distance from between people must be maintained as much as possible.
- Proper fitting face coverings must be worn at all times.
- Shaking hands or engaging in other physical contact is prohibited in school buildings.

Restroom Breaks

Teachers will provide frequent restroom breaks for students in order to increase hand washing throughout the day. Teachers will escort students to the assigned restroom adhering to their assigned time. The number of students in the restroom at one time will be limited. Teachers will reinforce the need for all students to wash their hands before they exit the restroom.

Hallway Travel

All students and staff will walk on the right-hand side of the hallway and maintain proper social distancing (3-6 feet apart, whenever possible). One-way directional hallways will be used whenever practicable.

Water Fountains:

Parents and staff are strongly encouraged to purchase a reusable water bottle that can be brought to school and filled utilizing a water filling station or drinking fountain. Water bottles

should be cleaned daily. The district will provide disposable cups next to each water fountain to use for those that do not have a reusable water bottle. Staff and students are discouraged from drinking directly from the fountain. Water fountains will be disinfected throughout the day.

Buildings and Grounds – Cleaning and Sanitizing

Each afternoon after students and staff depart, custodians will clean and sanitize each classroom and other areas attended by students by wiping down each desk surface on top and underneath, all floors, all touch surfaces such as door handles, handrails, light switches, sink handles, etc. Bathrooms will be cleaned and sanitized frequently throughout the day and after the conclusion of each student attendance day.

Additional custodians have been added to the day shift to increase the amount of cleaning and sanitizing of surfaces throughout the day and custodian shift times may be increased, as needed.

The District has installed bipolar ionization devices in all classroom univents and air handlers throughout all buildings. These units help remove viruses, including SARS-2-CoV, the virus that causes COVID-19, from the air.

<u>Classroom Set-up/Arrangements – Furniture and Equipment – Shared Objects</u>

All classrooms will be set-up and configured so as to allow the maximum amount of distance between student seating. Classroom materials should not be shared among students and cloth toys or materials should not be utilized in the classroom. Students should not bring toys, electronic devices, or other items from home other than district-issued devices and required supplies noted on the school supply list. No district-issued electronic device or any other item should ever be shared with another student.

Food Service - Breakfast (District #162)

Breakfast will be "Grab n' Go" style. Upon entering the building each day, students will be greeted by lunchroom staff who will offer breakfast and milk. Food service staff will record, on a paper roster, the meals taken in accordance with National School Lunch Program rules. Students who elect to receive the meal will take it to the designated area in their building. Once there, students may remove their face coverings during breakfast time as long as social distancing is maintained. Students must put their face covering back on at the conclusion of breakfast.

All products provided will be disposable and rolling garbage cans will be available in each hallway for disposal of all breakfast items. Individual water bottles will be available in every classroom.

Breakfast (Southland)

Upon entering the building each day, students who wish to eat breakfast will be directed to the cafeteria where they will be greeted by Food Service staff. Food service staff will record the meals taken in accordance with National School Lunch Program rules.

Students who elect to receive the meal will eat in the cafeteria or other designated area. Tables will be arranged such that students will sit three to six feet apart facing the same direction. Face coverings may be removed at this time as long as social distancing is maintained. Students will have 10 minutes to eat breakfast before being sent to their first period class.

Food service staff will clean and sanitize all student cafeteria tables and seats upon conclusion of breakfast service.

All products provided will be disposable and garbage cans will be placed throughout the cafeteria and other eating locations for easy disposal of all items. Food service staff will clean and sanitize all student cafeteria tables and seats upon conclusion of the breakfast serving each morning.

Lunch (District #162)

Lunch for District #162 schools will be consumed in the lunchroom or other designated spaces outside of the classroom spaces for those who have severe food allergies. In any location where food service takes place, students must be seated three to six feet apart facing the same direction or separated by dividers while eating. Each Principal must designate a staff member to assign lunch seats each day and record who was present at lunch each day on a chart that is kept with the school nurse. This chart will be used for contact tracing purposes.

Food service staff will clean and sanitize all student cafeteria tables and seats upon conclusion of each lunch period. Students from the next lunch period will not be allowed into the cafeteria and other serving locations until the lunchroom staff has finished cleaning and sanitizing all seating areas.

Students can elect to bring their own lunch or eat the school meal for that day. **Note that** students and parents are **NOT** allowed to have food delivered to the school at this time. Any child who forgets his/her lunch can ask to be provided the school meal for that day.

Lunch (Southland)

Like breakfast, lunch for Southland students will be consumed in the cafeteria and other designated locations. Students will be seated at sanitized tables three to six-feet apart facing the same direction. All food will be provided on disposable trays and utilizing disposable utensils and other products. While salad will be provided, there will be no open salad bar at this time. Students may remove their face coverings during lunch as long as they remain in their seats and socially distanced. Students must put their face covering back on when leaving their seat at the conclusion of lunch.

Students can elect to bring their own lunch or eat the school meal for that day. **Note that** students and parents are **NOT** allowed to have food delivered to the school at this time. Any child who forgets his/her lunch can ask to be provided the school meal for that day.

Garbage cans will be placed throughout the cafeteria and other eating locations for easy disposal of all items. Food service staff will clean and sanitize all student cafeteria tables and seats upon conclusion of each lunch period. Students from the next lunch period will not be allowed into the cafeteria and other serving locations until the lunchroom staff has finished cleaning and sanitizing all seating areas.

A designated staff person will assign seats and take attendance at each lunch period on a seating chart that will be kept with the school nurse for contact tracing purposes.

Physical Education

Physical education classes will be held outside to the extent possible depending on weather. Teachers should plan for activities that do not involve physical contact between students allow for social distancing while indoors.

After-School Activities

Athletics:

- All coaches must take accurate attendance at every practice or meeting.
- Athletes must maintain social distance when not in action.
- Coaches must take special care to effectively clean and disinfect any possibly shared objects and surfaces, following CDC Guidelines.
- No showers will be taken at Southland and locker rooms will not be used. Athletes are encouraged to shower <u>as soon</u> as they get home.

SECTION 2 – TECHNOLOGY

Technology

All Southland and District #162 students in grades K-12 will be provided a Chromebook and charger for in-class instruction and homework. Preschool students at Richton Square School will be given iPads. Teachers will provide parents with apps and special activities to be conducted at home to supplement in-class activities and to facilitate school to home communication with parents.

SECTION 3 - PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT/TRAINING

Mandatory Staff Trainings

All staff are required to complete the following GCN trainings prior to starting in-person learning:

- Blood-borne Pathogens
- COVID-19 Educational Institutions
- COVID-19 How to Wear a Mask
- COVID-19 Proper Handwashing

Support Staff Training

Secretaries, custodians, cafeteria workers, technology assistants and all support staff have been provided training sessions related to their specific roles in the school buildings.

SECTION 4 - MEDICAL / HEALTH AND SAFETY PROTOCOLS

Social/Emotional Health

All staff will monitor students for evidence of social/emotional well-being. Students exhibiting signs of social/emotional difficulties will be referred to the Social/Emotional team in each building for further evaluation. District #162 and Southland will utilize the Federal Climate Grant to provide additional social/emotional support to students throughout the year.

Hygiene

Hand sanitizer dispensers have been installed in all classrooms, offices, nurse areas and any other area where students or staff will be in attendance. In addition, soap and disposable paper towels will be provided in all rooms that have sinks. All classrooms will also be given disinfectant wipes to spot clean surfaces, when necessary. Only hand sanitizing wipes, not harsh disinfectants, can be handled by students.

Students must properly utilize face coverings during the school day (see attachment). Any teacher with a student who has a health condition not allowing for the use of a face covering or a student who is having difficulty tolerating the face covering should contact the building administrator for guidance. Students and staff must utilize face coverings that meet IDPH guidelines. Each school will be provided with a supply of disposable face coverings to give to any student or staff member who forgets to bring one to school.

Each school will also be provided with a supply of non-latex gloves. Gloves do not need to be worn by students and staff unless medically necessary. Nurses and other medical staff must use gloves as directed. Nurses will be supplied with proper face coverings (including N-95 masks,), face shields, gloves, and gowns. Custodians assigned to clean and disinfect any potential COVID-19 infected area will also be provided with N-95 masks, gloves, or other items recommended by the Illinois Department of Public Health.

On the first day of school, students shall be taught proper handwashing techniques, social distancing guidelines and other proper health precautions such as not touching their faces (eyes, nose, mouth). Students will also be taught how to wear face masks properly. Teachers should use the information included in the attachments to this plan.

Handwashing should take place for 20 seconds and be monitored by staff at the elementary level to the extent possible. Handwashing breaks will be allowed and encouraged throughout the day. Handwashing posters will be displayed in bathrooms and other areas of each school building.

Students and staff should cover coughs and sneezes with a tissue. Used tissues should be immediately thrown in the trash and hands washed with soap and water. Hand hygiene should be performed upon arrival to and departure from school, after blowing one's nose, coughing, or sneezing; following restroom use; before food preparation or eating; before/after routine care for another person, such as a child; after contact with a person who is sick; upon return from physical education; and following glove removal. Note that hand sanitizer should not be used when hands are visibly dirty. Soap and water should be used in its place.

Staff Vaccination and Testing

All staff must be fully vaccinated or submit to weekly COVID-19 testing. Matteson School District #162 and Southland College Prep will provide a testing clinic each week for unvaccinated staff to be tested for COVID-19. Unvaccinated staff that do not comply with these testing requirements will be excluded from the premises.

Medical Considerations

Any student or staff member who tests positive for COVID-19 or who feels any signs or symptoms of illness must remain at home. (According to IDPH the known symptoms of COVID-19 are: fever of 100.4 or greater, cough, shortness of breath or difficulty breathing, chills, muscle or body aches, headache, sore throat, new loss of taste or smell, fatigue, congestion or runny nose, nausea or vomiting, or diarrhea). Students and staff must follow the protocols in Appendices 2 and 3 of this document.

All schools in District #162 and Southland have a full-time registered nurse (RN) assigned to the building. Within the school environment, any individual who shows symptoms of COVID-19 will be immediately separated from the rest of the school population and will be monitored until leaving the building. Individuals who are sick will be sent home. If emergency services are necessary, staff will call 911. When interacting with students or staff who may be sick, school

RNs and personnel will follow CDC guidance on standard and transmission-based precautions such as the wearing of face coverings, gloves and protective eyewear and face shields. Rooms that were used by the sick individual will be sanitized.

<u>Communication Plan for When Students or Staff have Confirmed or Suspected COVID-19</u>

If a school learns of a confirmed case of COVID-19, the school must identify and report to the Chief Special Education Officer the names of all adults or children who may have had close contact with the ill individual as defined in Appendices 2 and 3 of this document. Parents will be informed if their child has had close contact with an individual who has a <u>confirmed</u> case of COVID-19. Staff will also be informed if they have had close contact with the individual. However, it is not legal to share the name of the infected individual. The district will use the most current Illinois Department of Public Health definition of close contact for determination of who must be notified.

Upon notice that a student or staff member is suspected of having COVID-19, the Superintendent/C.E.O.'s designee will contact the Department of Public Health Acute Communicable Disease Program for guidance on steps to minimize risk for other students and staff.

APPENDIX 1: STUDENT COVID-19 EXPOSURE PROCEDURES

Students exhibiting one or more <u>symptoms consistent with COVID-19</u> must go home. Fully vaccinated persons who remain asymptomatic and those with COVID-19 infection in the past 90 days are excluded from quarantine. Fully vaccinated persons who are symptomatic and unvaccinated students must follow the following protocols:

- 1. Students with a confirmed COVID-19 infection must complete 5 calendar days of isolation from the date of first symptom onset, be fever-free for 24 hours without use of fever-reducing medications, and have a doctor's note stating they are COVID-19 free to return to school. Siblings of students with confirmed cases must follow the same protocol as above.
- 2. Students experiencing Symptoms consistent with COVID-19 but being diagnosed with a non-COVID-19 illness must meet the criteria for returning to school for the illness with which they have been diagnosed. At a minimum, the individual must be fever-free for 24 hours without the use of fever-reducing medication and have had no diarrhea or vomiting in the previous 24 hours. A doctor's note documenting the alternative diagnosis and a negative COVID-19 test result must accompany a student returning to school with an alternative diagnosis after experiencing Symptoms consistent with COVID-19.
- 3. Students exposed to a confirmed case of COVID-19 inside or outside of the school setting must remain home for 5 days. If a COVID-19 illness develops, students must undergo a 5-day isolation period from the onset of symptoms and follow all the above protocols. Siblings of students who have been exposed do not need to quarantine unless the sibling becomes positive with COVID-19.
- 4. Principals must report to the District Office daily the names of students reporting exposure to a confirmed case of COVID-19 or sent home for symptoms consistent with COVID-19 and the names of the individuals who had close contact with that student. The Principal will contact parents of students that have had close contact, but they cannot share the name of the positive case due to confidentiality. The report must be submitted daily to the Superintendent.
- 5. The District Office will maintain a <u>confidential spreadsheet</u> identifying positive or probable cases. The spreadsheet will include the date of notification to the District Office, the date the District Office notified staff and families of students who had close contact, and the date of the return of the student. The District Office will report students with confirmed COVID-19 to the Cook County Department of Public Health.

The district will define close contacts based on the current Illinois Department of Public Health definitions.

APPENDIX 2: STAFF COVID-19 EXPOSURE PROCEDURES

Non Vaccinated staff exhibiting one or more <u>Symptoms consistent with COVID-19</u> should immediately report to their principal via phone call. Staff exhibiting Symptoms consistent with COVID-19 must go home. All Staff sent home with Symptoms consistent with COVID-19 must be diagnostically tested by their health care provider. Staff should remain home from school until they receive the test results then follow these guidelines:

- Staff who have a confirmed case of COVID-19 must complete 5 calendar days of isolation from the date of first symptom onset, be fever-free for 24 hours without use of fever-reducing medications, and have a doctor's note stating they are Covid-19 free to return to school.
- 2. Non-Vaccinated staff experiencing Symptoms consistent with COVID-19 but being diagnosed with a non-COVID-19 illness must meet the criteria for returning to school for the illness with which they have been diagnosed. At a minimum, the individual must be fever-free for 24 hours without the use of fever-reducing medication and have had no diarrhea or vomiting in the previous 24 hours. A doctor's note documenting the alternative diagnosis and a negative COVID-19 test result must accompany staff returning to school with an alternative diagnosis after experiencing Symptoms consistent with COVID-19.
- 3. Non- vaccinated Staff exposed to a confirmed case of Covid-19 inside or outside of the school setting must remain home for 5 days. If a COVID-19 illness develops, use the additional 5-day isolation period from the onset of symptoms and follow all the above protocols
- 4. Principals must report to the District Office daily the name of staff reporting exposure to a confirmed COVID-19 case or sent home for symptoms consistent with COVID-19 and the names of the individuals who had close contact with that staff member.

The District Office will maintain a <u>confidential spreadsheet</u> identifying positive or probable cases. The spreadsheet will include the date of notification to the District Office, the date the District Office notified staff and families of students who had close contact, and the date of the return of the staff member.

The District Office will contact all persons with close contact only; the name of the person will not be shared due to confidentiality. The District Office will report staff with confirmed COVID-19, to the Cook County Department of Public Health.

The district will define close contacts based on the current Illinois Department of Public Health definitions.